

College of Nursing and Health Sciences



Health Informatics Program

Department of Public Health

This handbook sets out a range of information and, where applicable, points to a number of other important documents to help support you through your studies at the University.

The purpose of this handbook is to provide information to students about your program of study.

It is designed to support you throughout your studies and it is important to familiarise yourself with all the contents of this handbook.

Contents

| Health Informatics Program | 5 |
|---|----|
| Program Title | į |
| Mission Vision and Goals of the Program | į |
| Program Graduate Attributes | 6 |
| Program Learning Outcomes | 7 |
| Program Duration | 7 |
| Credit Hours | 7 |
| Program Study Plan | 8 |
| Academic Terms | 11 |
| Admission Mechanism | 12 |
| Admission Procedure | 13 |
| Required Score for Admission | 14 |
| The Levels System | 14 |
| Postponement | 15 |
| Withdrawal | 15 |
| Dropping-out | 16 |
| Readmission | 16 |
| Transfer | 16 |
| Visiting Student | 17 |
| Condition for visiting students | 18 |
| Absence and Denial | 19 |
| Student Assessment | 19 |
| Student conduct | 20 |
| Examination and Evaluation Policies | 20 |
| Ethics of Assessment | 21 |
| Confidentiality of Assessment | 22 |
| Special Support | 22 |
| Roles and Responsibilities | 23 |
| Students | 23 |
| Faculty | 23 |
| Dean | 24 |
| Examination and Evaluation committee | 24 |
| Examination Period | 25 |
| Procedure before Exam | 25 |

| Entering and Leaving the Examination Room | 25 |
|---|----|
| Breaches of Examination Procedures: | 28 |
| Student examination cheating policy | 28 |
| Appeals | 29 |
| Makeup exam procedures | 30 |
| Student Rights and Duties | 30 |
| Requests, Complaints, and Appeals | 32 |
| STAFF AND CONTACT DETAILS | 33 |

Health Informatics Program

In the era of digitization, it is necessary to train and equip the healthcare professionals with the knowledge, skills and expertise of managing information in a secure and systematic form using technological approach. Health Informatics is one of the unique emerging disciplines that combine computer sciences, management sciences and Information and communication technology.

The program of HI prepares highly qualified students for information management and provides technical leadership including managing innovative projects in primary healthcare centers, hospitals and other allied healthcare organizations. These professionals perform a variety of health records related duties such as, managing patient's information by collecting, storing, analyzing and retrieving data to meet the professional, legal, ethical, and administrative requirements of the system.

In addition, the health informatics professionals are involved in designing and maintaining information management systems and excel in technical and decision-making roles in various healthcare institutions. They could also be involved in project management duties in various businesses and commercialized entities catering to the routinely functional needs of health facilities. Computer software and information technologies enable health care organizations to automate the work of decision making for improved quality of care, cost control, and for successful care management.

Program Title

Bachelor of Health Informatics

Mission Vision and Goals of the Program

Vision

Health Informatics program will be locally recognised with its excellence in academic education, scientific research and community services.

Mission

Health Informatics program is committed to provide high standardised academic education, scientific research, and community services within the spirit of professional ethics, responsibility and collaboration.

Program Goals

- To graduate competent health Informatics specialists to serve in different health informatics disciplines.
- To foster multidisciplinary scientific research with relevant institutions and Ministry of Health, with emphasis on the digital health and health information systems.

- To promote professional ethics, teamwork and responsibility towards lifelong personal and community development.
- To engage in communities' services that expand their capacity to improve health, and digital health advocacy.
- To participate in advancing health informatics practices through consultancy services and continuous training programs.

Program Graduate Attributes

At the end of the program the graduates will have the following attributes;

Competent Health Informatician

 Graduates have a thorough knowledge of health informatics discipline, and can practice in a multiprofessional context.

Creative and critical thinker

• Graduates utilize critical thinking and problem-solving principles and techniques to the current inquiries, investigations and research, and future challenges within the field of work.

Self - learner

 Graduates are responsible, resilient and have the capacity to autonomously manage the tasks and activities within the field of work.

Effective Communicator

Graduates are effective communicators exhibiting interpersonal and leadership skills to actively
participate in advancing the discipline and digital society.

Ethical Professional

 Graduates' practices and roles are consistent with the national, cultural, organizational and ethical values.

Program Learning Outcomes

| Knowle | edge and Understanding | | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| K1 | Explain the principles, policies, procedures and functions related to the concepts of health informatics competency domains. | | | | | |
| K2 | Describe the technical processes necessary for effective health data management practices and their applications. | | | | | |
| К3 | Discuss the latest health informatics trends, safeguard measures, and related research methodologies for appropriate utilization of health care data. | | | | | |
| Skills | | | | | | |
| 0.1 | Apply the scientific and creative skills related to health information system's | | | | | |
| S1 | planning, implementation, utilization, functionality and maintenance. | | | | | |
| G O | Perform accurately health data management procedures utilizing information | | | | | |
| S2 | systems and applications and categorize them for clinical coding. | | | | | |
| Analyze the operational and technical issues related to information systems, | | | | | | |
| S3 | networking, integration, security, statistical reporting and quality management. | | | | | |
| G 4 | Demonstrate the investigative and research skills, while working in groups, | | | | | |
| S4 | exhibiting effective communication skills and group dynamics. | | | | | |
| Values | , Autonomy, and Responsibility | | | | | |
| | Represent responsible citizenship by adhering to professional, academic and | | | | | |
| V1 | organizational codes of conduct, attitude, and behavior. | | | | | |
| 1.10 | Demonstrate ability to lead, manage tasks autonomously, and contribute to the | | | | | |
| V2 | advancement of the community within the field of work. | | | | | |

Program Duration

- Total duration is 4 years
- After finishing the four years, the students will have to work as an intern in different healthcare sectors (ministry, hospitals, primary healthcare centers, vendors and private dispensaries) for a period 48 weeks.

Credit Hours

• Total 129 credit hours

Program Study Plan

| Program Structure | Required/ Elective | No. of courses | Credit Hours | Percentage |
|----------------------------|-----------------------|----------------|-----------------|------------|
| Institution Requirements | Required | 3 | 6 | 4.7% |
| institution Requirements | Elective | | | |
| College Requirements | Required | 6 | 23 | 17.8% |
| Conege Requirements | Elective | | | |
| Drogram Doguiramenta | Required | 38 | 94 | 72.9% |
| Program Requirements | Elective | 1 | 2 | 1.5% |
| Capstone Course/Project | Required | 1 | 4 | 3.1% |
| Field Training/ Internship | Required | | | |
| Residency year | | | | |
| Others | | | | |
| Total | | 49 | 129 | 100% |

| Level | Course Code | Course Title | Required or Elective | Pre- Requisite Courses | Credit Hours | Type of requirements (Institution, College, or Program) |
|------------|----------------|--|----------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| | 101 ISLM | Islamic Culture 1 | Required | None | 2 | Institution |
| | 102 ARAB | Arabic Writing | Required | None | 2 | Institution |
| Level 1 | 181 ENG | English Language for Health specialists 1 | Required | None | 4 | College |
| | 182 ENG | English Language for Health specialists 2 | Required | None | 4 | College |
| | 183 ENG | English Language for Health specialists 3 | Required | 181 ENG | 3 | College |
| Level | 105 PHYS | Physics for Health Specialties | Required | 181 ENG | 3 | College |
| 2 | 105 BIO | Biology for Health Specialties | Required | 181 ENG | 3 | College |
| | 105CHEM | Chemistry for Health Specialties | Required | 181 ENG | 3 | College |
| | 102 ISLM | Islamic Culture 2 | Required | None | 2 | Institution |
| Level | 211 PHS | Introduction to Public Health | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| 3 | 211 BHI | Learning Skills for Health Specialties | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 212 Physio-2 | Human Physiology | Required | 105 BIO | 2 | Program |

| Level | Course Code | Course Title | Required or Elective | Pre- Requisite Courses | Credit Hours | Type of requirements (Institution, College, or Program) |
|------------|----------------|---|----------------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| | 220 ANAT | Introduction to Human Anatomy | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| | 211 ENV | Principles of Environmental & Occupational Health | Required | 105 PHYS, 105 CHEM | 2 | Program |
| | 243 PHCL | Introduction to Ethics in the health professions | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 212 HSM | Healthcare System and Policies | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 213 PHS | Microbiology and Parasitology for Public Health | Required | 220 ANAT, 212 Physio | 3 | Program |
| Level | 214 PHS | First Aid and Physical Assessment | Required | 220 ANAT, 212 Physio | 2 | Program |
| 4 | 215 PHS | Medical Terminology | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 221 HEP | Introduction to Health Education & Promotion | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 221 BHI | Introduction to Health Informatics | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 222 EPI | Principles of Epidemiology | Required | 211 PHS | 2 | Program |
| | 222 STA | Fundamentals of Biostatistics | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 316 EPI | Disease Process | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| | 322 BHI | Applications in Health Informatics | Required | 221 BHI | 3 | Program |
| | 323 BHI | Health Records | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| Level | 323 STA | Applied Biostatistics | Required | 222 STA | 3 | Program |
| 5 | 331 BHI | Fundamentals of Information Systems in Healthcare | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 332 BHI | Introduction to Database | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| Level 6 | 313 HSM | Organizational Behavior in Health Care | Required | 211 HSM | 2 | Program |

| Level | Course Code | Course Title | Required or Elective | Pre- Requisite Courses | Credit Hours | Type of requirements (Institution, College, or Program) |
|------------|----------------|---|----------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| | 324 BHI | Sociology of Health and Illness | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 325 BHI | Health Data Classification & Coding Systems | Required | 215 PHS | 4 | Program |
| | 333 BHI | Programming 1 | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| | 334 BHI | Database Management Systems | Required | 332 BHI | 3 | Program |
| | 352 GPH | Research Methodology | Required | 323 STA 222 EPI | 3 | Program |
| | 413 HSM | Health Economics | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 415 HSM | Healthcare Quality & Patient Safety | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 424 STA | Hospital Statistics | Required | 323 STA | 2 | Program |
| Level 7 | 427 BHI | Project Management in Health Informatics | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| , | 435 BHI | Programming 2 | Required | 333 BHI | 3 | Program |
| | 436 BHI | Health Systems Analysis and Design | Required | 331 BHI | 3 | Program |
| | 451 BHI | Health Research Design | Required | 352 GPH | 3 | Program |
| | 414 HSM | Health Service Management | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 426 BHI | Legal & Ethical Aspects of Health Informatics | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| Level 8 | 428 BHI | Trends in Health Informatics | Required | None | 2 | Program |
| | 429 BHI | Data Management and Visualization | Required | 325 BHI | 2 | Program |
| | 437 BHI | Human Computer Interaction | Required | None | 3 | Program |
| | 459 BHI | Graduation Project | Required | 451 BHI | 4 | Program |
| | 417 HSM | Financial Accounting in Healthcare | Elective | None | 2 | Program |
| Electives | 434 BHI | Mobile Computing in Healthcare | Elective | None | 2 | Program |
| | 438 BHI | Network and Cybersecurity | Elective | None | 2 | Program |
| | 439 BHI | Geographic Information System | Elective | None | 2 | Program |

| Level | Course Code | Course Title | Required or Elective | Pre- Requisite Courses | Credit Hours | Type of requirements (Institution, College, or Program) |
|-------|----------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------|---|
| | | (GIS) for Public Health | | | | |

Academic Terms

Semester Study: period no less than 15 weeks excluding registration and final exams periods.

Summer Semester: Study period no more than 8 weeks excluding registration and final exam periods. Course time is doubled during summer semester.

Academic Level: Study level as per the approved study plan.

Study Plan: Mandatory, elective and free courses required for graduation in a specific specialty.

Course: Subject matter in certain academic level of a study plan in a program with a course name, code, number, description, and specifications kept in course file in academic department for regular follow up, evaluation, and improvement. Course may have pre-requisite or corequisite conditions.

Academic Unit: Weekly theoretical lecture, clinical study no less than 50 minutes, or field work no less than 100 minutes.

Academic Warning: Notice issued to a student as a response to a GPA lower than the minimum required score as per regulations.

Course Work Marks: Marks awarded for students' work, exams, research, and learning activities during a semester.

Final Exam: Exam held at the end of a semester.

Final Exam Marks: Marks awarded to a student in the final exam.

Final Mark: Sum of course work marks and final exam marks for each course out of 100.

Grade: Description of percentage of final mark of a course.

Incomplete: Temporary grade for students who could not sit for the final exam, referred to as (IC).

In Progress: Temporary grade for students whose study requires more than one semester, referred to as (IP).

Semester Grade: Total points scored by student divided by all unites studied in a given semester. Points are calculated by product of course units and grade in each course.

Grade Point Average (GPA): Total points scored by student in all studied courses in passed levels divided by the total units of studied courses.

General Grade: Description of student learning level during study.

Credit Hours: Points describing expected learning load required to pass a learning unit or course as part of program units.

Contact Hours: Total theoretical and practical class hours that a student takes to gain skills required in the course objectives.

Admission Mechanism

- Students have to apply through the Jazan University web application form: http://edugate.jazanu.edu.sa/jazan/init
- Upon filling and submitting the web application form and ticking the acceptance box,
 Jazan University has the right to exclude all applications that do not meet the admission requirements and procedures.
- The bachelor degree program of HI will only appear, if the applicant has a Qualifying and Grade Point Ration score of 60% or more.
- Non-Saudi applicants born to Saudi mothers should upload their birth certificates and their mother's national ID cards where indicated. Failure to provide these documents will result in automatic exclusion from the initial nomination process.
- At the end of application time, acceptance will be competitively decided on the basis of conditions met, and available seats.
- Applicants are required to refer to the dates in the university admission plan and regularly follow up on their applications status online, and confirm their registration once accepted.

- Applicants must confirm their registration when prompted online.
- Failure to confirm registration will result in their exclusion from the admission process.
- Applicants must show up at times announced for exams and interviews.

Admission Procedure

- Upon primary online nomination, applicant will see three options:
 - (Accept and Confirm) Pressing this option means that the applicant is accepting
 the offered primary nomination and confirms it as final acceptance without any
 competition for other specialty in case seats are available.
 - (Accept and Upgrade) Pressing this option means that the applicant is accepting
 the offered primary nomination with and authorizes the university to upgrade their
 admission to another program if a seat becomes available.
 - (Withdraw) Pressing this option means that the applicant does not accept the offered primary nomination. This is considered a final withdrawal and a withdrawal form can then be printed online.
- Not confirming primary nomination within the allowed time means that the applicant does not wish to join the program. This will cause the applicant to lose their right to admission and as will as their access to their online account.
- At the end of acceptance process, the applicant's online status is changed to (primarily accepted) or (finally accepted) and receives college, specialty, and student number online.
- An applicant can withdraw after receiving student number by printing a Withdrawal form
 (a Clearance form) online. In this case the current admission will be terminated and the
 applicant will be eligible for admission after two academic years.
- Accepted students should complete the final acceptance procedure by making reservation for issuing University Student card following these steps:
 - sign in to the online account.
 - access the University Student Card page (using student number or national id number)
 - select a date for issuing student card
 - print out student card issue date slip
 - print out notice of admission slip

Having met these conditions, the final admission becomes confirmed.

Required Score for Admission

The Qualifying Score, calculated as follows, 30 % of high school score + 30 % of General Skills Test (Qiyas) score + 40 % of The Achievement Test (Tahsili) score The Grade Point Ration score, calculated as follows, 40 % of high school score + 60 % of General Skills Test (Qiyas) score

The Levels System

The levels system is a study system in which academic year is divided into two semesters with an additional summer semester that can be offered in some years and in some programs. Graduation requirements are distributed over this level system according to the syllabus approved by the University Board. Registration, deletion, and addition procedures within syllabus are allowed to guarantee that students are registered for a minimum study load in accordance with the following rules:

- 1. A student is transferred from a level to the next only by successfully passing all courses
- 2. The minimum study load is 12 units.
- 3. If a student fails one course or more, he/she should retake the failed course(s), observing the following rules:
 - a. Failing courses that add up to the minimum required study units of a level, a student will only be able to register for the courses which he/she had failed.
 - b. Failing courses that do not add up to the minimum required study units of a level, a student will have to register for the courses that he/she failed, in addition to other courses in accordance with the following schedule and study plan regulations: -
 - Registration should be made in light of schedule and study plan regulations
 - A student registration load is based on his/her GPA, provided that it meets the minimum required load condition, and as per the following:

| Allowed Unit | GPA |
|--------------|----------------|
| 12-14 | Less than 2.00 |
| 14-16 | 2.00-2.74 |
| 16-18 | 2.75-3.74 |
| 18-20 | 3.75 or higher |

- The student table must have no conflicts.
- If registration could not be made (due to schedule confliction, incompletion of pre-requisites, or exhaustion of current level courses), a student can register for available courses from the following levels, and if the students' load continue fall below the minimum required load, the minimum required load conditions are then waived.
- Courses are allowed for registration from up to three consecutive levels only.

Postponement

- Postponement is allowed based on a student request before the end of the first week of a semester and is only warranted based on an excuse accepted by the dean. Postponement is not allowed for more than two consecutive semesters or three non-consecutive semesters.
- The college deanship has the right to seek next of kin for approval of postponement for female students.

Withdrawal

- Withdrawal form a registration for a semester is allowed for one semester and in this case the student is not considered failed in courses during that semester. A withdrawal request must be made at least four weeks before final exams. In colleges that have a full year system, an excuse can be made 8 weeks before the final exam. A withdrawal shows in the student transcript as a (W). The semester in which a withdrawal occurs counts towards the required the maximum period allowed for graduation. Colleges are required to update the Deanship of Admission and Registration with withdrawal cases observing the university calendar
- Withdrawal is not allowed for more than two consecutive semesters or three nonconsecutive semesters. In colleges that follow a full year system, a withdrawal cannot be
 made for two consecutive years and the maximum allowed number of withdrawal years
 is two unless the student is exempted by the university president.
- The college deanship has the right to seek next of kin for approval of postponement for female students.

Dropping-out

- Student dropping out for a complete semester without accepted request is expelled. The university council is entitled to expel such students even based on a shorter drop-out period notice.
- A student is not considered a drop-out if he/she is a visiting student at another university.

Readmission

A dropped-out student can apply for readmission at the Deanship of Admission and Registration according to these rules:

- A readmission request should be submitted prior to the intended readmission semester
- A readmission request has to be approved by the student's college council or any third party authorized by this council.
- If the expulsion occurred four semesters prior to the intended readmission semester (or two academic years in colleges that follow the full year system), a student can then apply for a new admission where admission conditions apply and a new university ID is issued.
- Readmission is allowed only once and University Board has authority to make exceptions.
- Readmission is not allowed for students expelled for academic or disciplinary reasons.

Transfer

Transfer from another University

- Transfer to Jazan University is allowed by acceptance of Dean of Faculty to which transfer is required according and the rules:
 - o Applicant was enrolled in an approved college/university.
 - Applicant was not dismissed for academic or disciplinary reasons from college/university of origin.
 - Applicant meets requirements set by Faculty Board and has GPA no less than 3.00 out of 5.00.
 - o Application is made during time set for transfer during academic calendar.
 - Applicant should have at least 60% of units left to study in Jazan University.

- Applicant will be denied admission in case it was revealed that he/she was dismissed for academic or disciplinary reasons from university of origin.
- A student is transferred in any given semester from one university to another according to announced procedures and dates in the target university and within general transfer regulations
- Courses completed in university of origin and valued by Department Board and are approved by Faculty Board and added to applicant's academic record and accounted for in GPA.

Internal Transfer

- Internal transfer in Jazan University is granted upon approval of Deans of both Faculties.
- Internal transfer is allowed only once.
- Applicant should have GPA not less than 2.00 out of 5.00.
- Applicant should not have exceeded 4 semesters in Faculty of origin.
- Applicant should fulfil requirements for Faculty to which internal transfer is required.
- Applicant finished courses are added to academic record including grades and GPA.
- Internal transfer can be made from program to another within the same Faculty as per Faculty Board regulations.
- Applicant finished courses are added to academic record including grades and GPA.

Visiting Student

A visiting student is a student who studies some courses in another university or in one of the branches of his own university without transfer. A visiting student is credited for his/her studied courses according to the following rules

- Approval of the original college in which he/she studies at
- Study should be in a recognized university or college
- The course that the student studies outside the university should be equivalent to one of his courses in the original university
- If the student studies in another branch in his own university then he is processed according to article 47
- The university council determine the maximum number of units that can be credited for visiting students

- The causes that the stools division because is that a visit in student study are not included in his GPA
- Any other regulations that the university determines

Condition for visiting students

First: A student from Jazan University wishing to study as a visiting student in another university,

- A student must have an academic record showing no less than 2 semesters in his original college prior to the visiting student status request
- A student must obtain approval from his/her college to study as a visiting student noting the courses that he/she would be studying, and the college has the right to set a minimum GPA to credit the student for his studied courses. Based on a recommendation from the student's college the student is handed an official letter from the Deanship of Admission and Registration before the end of the first week of the semester.
- A visiting student studies must be taken in a recognized university.
- The courses that the student study outside university should be equivalent to a core course in the student study plan.
- The maximum number of credited units for a visiting student is 40% of the total number of units required for graduation at Jazan University.
- Credited courses are not included in the student GPA yet they are recorded in his/her academic record.
- A student must provide proof of his results in the first week of semester that follows his/her study as a visiting student. Failure to do so the student is then.
- Considered dropped-out during the in which he/she was registered as a visiting student, and he is process according to article 15.
- A student is paid his/her monthly allowance after providing proof of study to the deanship of admission registration.

Second: A student from another university wishing to register as a visiting student at Jazan University

- Student must have an academic record showing no less than 2 semesters in his original college prior to the visiting student status request at Jazan University.
- A visiting student must not be expelled based on academic or disciplinary reasons.

- A student must produce a written letter of approval from his/her original university stating
 that he is allowed to study as a visiting student at Jazan University. The letter must
 mention the courses that the student will register for at Jazan University.
- Visiting student must obtain approval of the targeted college.
- The maximum number of semesters a visiting student is allowed to register for is 2.
- A visiting student is not entitled to housing or monthly and allowance at the Jazan University.
- A visiting student courses are registered in his targeted college in accordance with registration regulations

Absence and Denial

- Regular student is denied attending final exam if attended less than 75% of lectures and practical/clinical lessons during semester. Course work marks are added to denied student academic record and appear as (DN). Denial is approved by Faculty Board before start of final exams.
- Faculty Board cancels denial for acceptable reasons made in application by student who attended at least 50%.

Student Assessment

- Faculty Board approves total marks for the program recommended by Department Board between 40% and 50% of the total mark of the course, and the student classwork mark is determined by
 - o practical exams, research, and curricular activities, or a selection of this and addition to one written test, or
 - o A minimum of two written exams.
- Faculty Board approves Department Board recommendation to include oral/practical parts in final exam.
- Department Board allows student to complete a prerequisite course on recommendation of teaching faculty.
- General grade for GPA upon graduation is as follows:
 - o (Excellent) GPA no less than 4.50 (or 3.5 out of 4.0)
 - o (Very Good) GPA 3.75-4.49 (or 2.5-3.49 out of 4.0)
 - o (Good) GPA 2.75-3.74 (or 1.75-2.74 out of 4.0)

- o (Pass)GPA 2.00-2.74 (or 1.00-1.74 out of 4.0)
- Honors are granted according to GPA on conditions that:
 - o Student has not failed courses in Jazan University or elsewhere.
 - o Student completed graduation requirement within time frame.
- o Student completed 60% of graduation requirements in Jazan University.

Student conduct

- If a student commits any misconduct (refer to Policy on Student Code of Conduct), the Office of Student Affairs will report it to the appropriate advisor.
- The VD for academic affairs will determine the subsequent appropriate actions (refer to the Policy on Ethics and Conduct) and meet the students in the presence of the advisor.
- A report of the appropriate disciplinary meeting is forwarded to the student's advisor with a copy maintained in student's file.
- For students placed on probation or compliance for a determined period, the advisor will
 continually monitor the student and provide monthly reports to the VDAA until the
 student is removed from probationary or disciplinary status.

Examination and Evaluation Policies

- The evaluation is an important component of the educational process, it goes beyond just
 granting students grade, as the activities and elements of the evaluation are used to
 measure the extent to which the learning outcomes of the program or course are achieved
 and it also help in redesigning the methods and strategies of teaching and learning.
- The University defines an examination as an assessment undertaken within a constrained period of time in a set location following a specified rubric of instruction. The candidate will undertake examination by writing except where the assessment is conducted using computer aided assessment software.
- Medicine will ensure that examinations are conducted ethically to provide valid assessment of academic performance and the achievement of proficiency of learning outcomes without adding undue stresses on students. These policies outline the rights and responsibilities of students in the assessment process so that this process can add to their learning experiences.

• These policies apply to assessment of students in the different courses offered by the Faculty of Public Health and Tropical Medicine. They encompass all types of assessment including continuous assessment and finals, examinations (written, OSCE, OSPE and others) and other types of assessments (assignments, presentations, practical etc.). These policies govern the actions of teaching staff, administrators and students in assessment activities.

Ethics of Assessment

- The assessment of a student's performance in a course shall be just and fair.
- All rules and arrangements related to examinations and assessments are transparently published and made available to students.
- There should be more than one assessment for each course. This includes different types and / or different times during the course.
- Students shall be provided with a description of the means of assessment to be used in each course including:
 - o the number and types of assessment
 - the date, time and location of assessment (dates of examinations, deadlines/ due dates for submission of assignments and clinical requirements)
 - o the weighting to be accorded each assessment
- Pre-defined criteria are announced to students to indicate the method of grading and marking for different types of assessment in each course.
- Every student has a right to review and discuss an assessment with the Instructor/
 Examiner provided the indicated procedure for this is followed. Students also have the
 right to appeal to the Head of the Examination and Assessment Committee regarding a
 decision related to procedures of assessments and examinations but not an examiner
 judgment.
- Students are required to adhere strictly to ethical and responsible conduct through all
 types of assessments. Academic misconduct including cheating, plagiarism and others
 are subject to penalty according to College and/ or University rules.

Confidentiality of Assessment

- All examination related materials including questions sheets and answer sheets are confidential and shall be kept in Exam control Room.
- Assessment outcomes are confidential. No person involved in the process should divulge to any unauthorized person any information related to an individual students' assessment or grades.

Validity of Assessment

- Assessment shall reflect the content of the course and its intended learning outcomes (ILOs).
- Assessment activities and examinations are monitored by the Assessment and Examination Committee for the validity of the questions, their difficulty and discrimination ability.

Special Support

(Low achievers, disabled, gifted, and talented students).

Special Support for Diverse Learning Needs

The program is committed to fostering an inclusive learning environment that caters to the diverse needs of our students. Recognizing that each individual has unique strengths and challenges, we provide specialized support to ensure that every student can thrive academically and personally.

Low Achievers:

For students facing challenges in academic performance, we have an academic advising unit that offer tailored support to address specific learning needs. Our dedicated team of educators and support staff is available to provide additional assistance, personalized tutoring, and resources to help low achievers build confidence and achieve their academic goals.

Disabled Students:

The program is committed to creating an accessible and accommodating learning environment for students with disabilities. Our campus facilities are equipped with necessary accommodations, and our Disability Support Services team works closely with students to develop individualized plans to meet their unique requirements.

Gifted and Talented Students:

Recognizing the exceptional abilities of gifted and talented students, we provide enrichment opportunities, advanced coursework, and mentorship programs to challenge and nurture their talents. The program goal is to create an environment where these students can excel and continue to develop their skills to their full potential.

If you have specific needs or concerns related to academic performance, disabilities, or gifted and talented programs, please don't hesitate to reach out to Student affair unit of the college.

Roles and Responsibilities

Students

- The students should actively and positively participate in all task and activities of the evaluation process.
- Should complete and deliver all evaluation requirements and tasks according to schedule.
- Students are expected to be honest in meeting the requirements of courses in which they are enrolled and to be aware of the examination's rules and instructions.
- Carry out all evaluation tasks assigned with honesty and in reliable manner.
- Adhere to the dates and times of the exam
- Adhere to the instructions directed by the official and examiner in the examination hall.
- To express an opinion on the evaluation tasks and activities through questionnaire.
- Abide by the regulations and arrangements related to test and not to cheat, attempt or assist in its commission
- Students should bring their own tools.
- Students shouldn't bring their mobiles or any other material related to the course inside the examination halls

Faculty

- Design and implement the assessment task and activities to achieve the targeted learning outcome.
- Establish clear standards for each task and activity assigned to students.
- Inform students of the task, activities and evaluation criteria.
- Granting marks and reviewing the grading process.
- Provide students with feedback based on the evaluation process.
- Review the evaluation results annually.
- Submitting sealed exam papers for reviewing.

- Marking exam papers.
- Entering results in the website after being approved by the college Dean.
- Auditing and announcing the results in the website after being approved by the college Dean.

Dean

- Approving the final schedule.
- Signing the final results after being approved by the college council.

Examination and Evaluation committee

- Implement evaluation and examination policies at the faculty in all programs.
- Preparing the first and final draft of the final exam schedules.
- Prepare meetings and workshops for students to introduce them to the evaluation tools,
 methods and system used in each program.
- Review the evaluation plan for all program courses and ensure that evaluation tasks and activities are designed, managed, reviewed and evaluated in a manner consistent with learning outcome and academic standards.
- Prepare the student guide for evaluation in cooperation with University Quality Examination Assessment center.
- Follow up of the continuous evaluation process for all courses.
- Submitting evaluation report on exam and clarify strength and weaknesses.
- Provide feedback to faculty about the exam in a confidential manner.
- Ensure the commitment of all faculty for the tools of evaluation and distribution of grades.
- Preparing the examination halls for conducting the exam.
- Prepare control room for correction of exam papers. (No exam paper is corrected out of the control room of the college and the result should be submitted within 48 hours after the exam).
- Supervise the examination process.
- Receiving exam Papers submitted by the Faculty in sealed envelope.
- Supervising examination process.
- Preparing schedule of students' distribution in exam halls.
- Preparing the invigilation schedule.
- Supervising and scheduling the auditing process.
- Preparing the absenteeism report.

- Preparing the exam final report.
- Storing exam papers

Examination Period

- A draft schedule for examinations to be posted on the JU website at least three weeks before the end of the semester.
- A student, who finds a conflict within the schedule of examination, should notify the
 examination committee by submitting written notes within a week after announcing the
 schedule.
- The final examination schedule is to be announced to students before two weeks from the examination period by examination committee.

Procedure before Exam

- Ensure that evaluation methods are consistent with teaching strategies and the intended learning outcome of the course.
- Ensure that the time allocated for the evaluation process is consistent with the level of course and no of accredited hours.
- Review the assessment plan annually to ensure that the intended learning outcome of the course are appropriate for the students.
- Ensure the safety and efficiency of the Evaluation process used and use appropriate, honest and reliable mechanism to verify the level of student achievement standards compared to the relevant reference point, whether internally or externally.
- Process of evaluation student with special need depends on the characteristics and need of each student according to the type of disability and learning difficulties.

Entering and Leaving the Examination Room

- Candidates will not be admitted to the examination room more than fifteen minutes before the start of the examination.
- Candidates may not enter the examination room later than thirty minutes after the start of the examination.
- No candidate may enter the examination room after the start of the examination if, for any reason, another candidate has already left the examination room.

- No candidate may leave the examination room, other than for illness or other reason
 acceptable to the invigilator, until thirty minutes after the start of the examination.
 Candidates who leave the examination room without the permission of an invigilator will
 be deemed to have withdrawn from the examination, and will not be permitted to re-enter
 the examination room.
- A candidate who wishes to leave the examination room early shall attract the attention of an invigilator and, when given permission to do so, shall leave the room with the minimum disturbance.
- All answer books (used and unused) and/or records of assessment are to be collected from candidates before they are permitted to leave the examination room.
- All candidates must take their belongings and their litter with them when they leave.

Starting and Ending Examinations

- No candidate shall start the examination until directed to do so by an invigilator.
- Candidates must stop working immediately when instructed to do so by the invigilator.
 Late arrival candidates will be required to finish at the stated end time, as instructed by the invigilator.
- In computer aided assessment the candidate will be timed out at the end of the assessment.
- All candidates are to remain seated in silence until scripts and/or records of assessment have been collected and permission to leave is given.
- Students must show their ID to the invigilator whenever asked
- Students must not have the following items in the examination room: Books Mobile phones or electronic devices Notes/ documents Personal items
- Female students unveil their head cover during the exam
- Each student signs his/her name in the attendance sheet
- Examination answer sheets and attendance slips are kept in the control room in a confidential safe for one year after graduation; after which they are disposed of.

Examination Stationery and Materials

- All work, including rough work, must be written in the answer books provided or on the
 relevant paper provided, where answer books are not used. Additional sheets of paper,
 such as graph paper and drawings, must be clearly marked with the candidate's Student
 Number and fixed to the candidate's answer book or record of assessment.
- Answer books are to be given to the invigilator on request.

- Pages may not be removed from an answer book, nor may an answer book or record of assessment be removed from the examination room.
- Mathematical tables, charts, etc. which may be provided for candidates' use are the property of the University, and may not be removed from the examination room.
- Candidates will be instructed prior to any examination which aids such as calculators or notes are permissible. Candidates will not be permitted to use their mobile telephone or smart watch (or other means of transmitting or receiving information in any form) as a calculator and a separate device must be used which cannot store text or other information that might unfairly be of use in the examination. A candidate who brings into the examination aids other than a type specified in the examination rubric commits an assessment offence.

Behavior during Examinations

- Throughout the whole of the examination, silence must be maintained, except when requests for anything etc. are made.
- A candidate whose behavior persistently disturbs other candidates may be excluded from the examination.
- Candidates are permitted to bring drinking water into the examination room. No other food or drink is allowed.
- A candidate may not communicate in any way with any person other than an invigilator during the examination.
- No candidate may retain during the examination any article which is not required for the
 purpose of the examination. Such articles should preferably not be taken into the
 examination room. If they are, they must be left in a part of the room, as directed by the
 senior invigilator, but they remain the responsibility of the candidate.

In the case of illness

- In case of illness Candidates are required to notify the invigilator
- A candidate may temporarily leave the examination room for illness or other reason acceptable to the invigilator. During such absence, a member of the University staff will accompany the candidate.
- If the candidate returns to complete the examination, they will not be able to submit a claim for extenuating circumstances.

• If the candidate cannot continue, or feels that their examination has been affected, they should leave the examination. Where this occurs, the invigilator will sign the answer book or record of assessment stating the time at which the candidate left. The candidate will need to submitting extenuating circumstances following the examination. Where a student submits an extenuating circumstances form for an examination, they left due to illness, the examination mark will be recorded as zero.

Breaches of Examination Procedures:

Breaches of examination procedures will be considered as misconduct.

- To avoid student's tendency to commit any attempt to cheating which is considered as a serious offense to academic goals and objectives as well as to the rights of fellow students.

 Students can be suspended, demoted and dismissed following a cheating incident.
- It is the policy of the FPHTM in compliance with the JU regulation, to prevent & to take disciplinary action in cases of cheating. Reported cases will be referred from the Examination Committee to Disciplinary Committee.
- The invigilator is responsible for dismissing any student who commits a misconduct during the exam, documents the incident in the standardized forms and handles the report to the Exam control after finishing the exam.

Student examination cheating policy

Level -I offence:

Whispering / talking, glancing / looking / staring, responding to others whispers and
assisting others in seeing own answer sheet, & other offences of similar nature and
intensity to cheating during exams.

Level -II offences:

- carrying of mobile phones and any other communication device is strictly prohibited in the examination rooms, mobile phone / device shall be confiscated
- Getting / giving assistance by exchange of personal items like calculators, etc. Punishment will be oral warning, change of seats, the authority is invigilator.

Level -III offences:

- Writing on the desk before the start of the exam.
- Sitting contrary to seating plan, intentionally.

 Being caught talking while outside the examination hall during the examination when allowed to go out e.g. visit to washroom, visit to administration for issue of temporary ID Card, etc.

Level IV Offence

- Using pre-meditated sheets containing helpful material.
- Using Mobile Phone /Smart watch to cheat.
- Carrying helpful material written on hands / arms
- Exchanging question papers

Punishment Cancellation of course ("F" grade shall be given), decision given by Examination and Disciplinary Committees Decision.

Level -V offences:

- Exchanging Answer Sheets during the examination.
- Writing each other's Roll No. on own answer sheet.
- Replacing answer sheets with other answer sheets not distributed for this exam (e.g. prepared at home, prepared in class).
- Cheating and being argumentative, rude, aggressive, etc. with the invigilator when checked. Whenever decided by the Disciplinary Committee.

Punishment will be Rustication / Expulsion from FPHTM and ("F" grade shall be given in all subjects), authority will be Examination and Disciplinary Committees.

The recommendations of the Examination Disciplinary Committee are submitted to FPHTM Dean for approval.

Appeals

• A student must submit a written appeal and state clearly the rationale for the appeal and must be submitted to the dean within seven calendar days of the date of the decision.

Examination and disciplinary Committees

- Investigate the reported case and check all the documents and evidence related to the cheating case.
- Make sure that the policy is implemented.
- Report to the dean of FPHTM.

CPHTM Dean:

- Approve the disciplinary actions taken by the examination and disciplinary committees.
- Investigate the issue if there is an appeal by the student.

Makeup exam procedures

A student who is unable to take an examination due to unavoidable circumstances (e.g., hospitalization, car accident, major illness) is expected to do the following:

- The student must notify Head of Program & the examination committee head of his/her absence for not attending the exam within three days after the exam date.
- Make-up exams are to be completed within 2 College days of the student's return to the College. Make-up exams should cover the same content area of the missed examination, but should not be the same exam that was administered to other students.
- In case the long vacation follows the exam, the makeup exam will be conducted on the first week of return of the following semester.
- The student makes the request in writing and in a timely manner before the scheduled exam, to request an opportunity to complete a makeup exam
- The student provides the Instructor with the required originally-signed documentation, regarding the reason he/she is not able to complete the test on the originally scheduled exam date. Without this documentation, the student will not be granted an accommodation to complete a makeup exam and will be assigned a zero grade for the exam. No incomplete (IC) grade can be assigned in this situation.
- All communications with the student must be via e-mail, with the University Registrar copied on each exchange.
- Assign an incomplete (IC) grade to the student if unable to grade the final exam before
 the final grade deadline and submit a Grade Change. Authorization Form to the Vice
 dean of academic affair and the College Dean for approval.

Student Rights and Duties

Student Rights

According to rules and regulations, the student is entitled to:

- 1. Amicable learning environment and quality education in view of Jazan University vision 2020.
- 2. University ID card to use on and outside campus.

- 3. Graduation Certificate.
- 4. Care, safety, social security, and health care.
- 5. Use of facilities and services including accommodation, library, activities center, restaurants, and parking.
- 6. Security and privacy of information and academic record.
- 7. Access to academic and administrative departments.
- 8. Free thinking within Islamic teachings and traditions.
- 9. Academic counselling with professional academic adviser.
- 10. Information of study plans, curricula, and time tables.
- 11. Easy access to course registration and learning resources.
- 12. Clear exam regulations, time tables, and model answers.
- 13. Access to all student facilities, events, and activities.
- 14. Promptness of teaching staff in class and office hours.
- 15. Special need student facilities and care.
- 16. Membership of student committees.
- 17. Access to incentives and rewards.
- 18. Notification of substandard academic performance.
- 19. Justice with disciplinary committee actions.
- 20. Right to defend in disciplinary hearings.

Student Duties

- 1. Comply with University rules and regulations.
- 2. Avoid misconduct on and off the campus.
- 3. Attendance of lectures and activities.
- 4. Show student ID card upon demand.
- 5. Adhere to proper traditional uniform on campus.
- 6. Avoid cheating and plagiarism.
- 7. Protect University property, equipment, and facilities.
- 8. Proper use of University computing and internet.
- 9. Abstain from unauthorized activities and associations.
- 10. Refrain from issuing unauthorized leaflets and brochures.
- 11. Refrain from unauthorized fund raising.
- 12. Kind treatment of faculty, staff, and employees.
- 13. Keep and maintain official email address.

- 14. Follow up University announcement and information.
- 15. Sincerity in pursuing learning activities.
- 16. Keep time frame for academic services.
- 17. Bring no dangerous material and weapons on campus.

Requests, Complaints, and Appeals

Requests

- 1. A requests is made in writing to the unit concerned.
- 2. A requests is examined by the relevant committee.
- 3. Decision is made by the Faculty Board.
- 4. Applicant is notified of the decision in writing.

Complaints

- 1. Complaints are made in writing to Dean or Vice-Dean.
- 2. Complaints are transferred to Academic Department.
- 3. Complaints are reviewed by an academic committee and decision is raised to the Dean.
- 4. The Dean makes decision about sanction according to committee recommendation.
- 5. Malicious complaints are transferred to the University Permanent Student Affairs Committee of the

University Vice-President for Academic Affairs to decide on proper action towards malicious

Complaints.

6. Decision about complaint becomes final when seen by University Board and the Board Meeting

Minutes is approved by University President.

Appeals

Levels of Appeal

Student is entitled to appeal against disciplinary actions as follows:

1. First Appeal

Appeal against a Faculty Unit is made to the Dean who forwards to the Student Affairs Committee for review and recommendation. The Dean makes a decision/disciplinary action.

2. Final Appeal

Appeal against second level action by Permanent Student Affairs Committee is made directly to University President within time frame for final appeal.

STAFF AND CONTACT DETAILS

| Dr Fahad Khan Azeez | Manal Almalki |
|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|
| Program Coordinator | Associate Professor |
| fazeez@jazanu.edu.sa | almalki@jazanu.edu.sa |
| | |
| Dr. Wafa Hetany | Dr. Rasitha Banu |
| Assistant Professor | Assistant Professor |
| whetany@jazanu.edu.sa | rbanu@jazanu.edu.sa |
| | |
| Dr. Mohammed Jubran Almalki | Dr. Sasikala N |
| Associate Professor | Assistant Professor |
| mjalmalki@jazanu.edu.sa | srajeswari@jazanu.edu.sa |
| | |
| Dr. Abdurrahman Jabour | Dr. Hema Latha |
| Assistant Professor | Assistant Professor |
| ajabour@jazanu.edu.sa | hthanganadar@jazanu.edu.sa |
| | |
| Dr. Joe Varghese | Wajiha Rehman |
| Assistant Professor | Lecturer |
| joevarghese@jazanu.edu.sa | wrehman@jazan.edu.sa |
| Shahazad Niwazi Qureshi | Sumaira Idrees |
| Lecturer | Lecturer |
| qurashi@jazanu.edu.sa | swaqar@jazanu.edu.sa |
| qui asine jazanu.euu.sa | swaqai@jazaiiu.euu.sa |
| Asim Mehmood | Dr Hanan Almaimani |
| Assistant Professor | Lecturer |
| amehmood@jazanu.edu.sa | <u>aalmaimani@jazanu.edu.sa</u> |
| | |
| Hesham Mahran | Mr. Abdur Rahman Muslihi |
| Assistant Professor | Lecturer |
| hamahran@jazanu.edu.sa | amuslihi@jazanu.edu.sa |
| Mar Chausa Mary at | DAn Arman Ama di |
| Mr. Sheraz Manyar | Mr. Ayman Amoudi |
| Lecturer | Lecturer |
| msahmed@jazanu.edu.sa | alamoudi@jazanu.edu.sa |
| Ms. Badrih Mousa Milihe | Dr. Abir Saad Mohammed |
| Lecturer | Assistant Professor |
| bmilihe@jazanu.edu.sa | abirm@jazanu.edu.sa |
| | |

Dr. Fahad Khan

Program Coordinator